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Edward Garrott's Hotel

Knoxville

Private

Edward Garrott's Hotel is very significant to the community of
Knoxville both architecturally and historically as a local landmark
representing the boomtown canal days of the town.

Knoxville was originally laid out in August, 1840 by surveyor George
Bowlus. However, the first and presumably most imposing buildings
of the town were built on the side of the hill descending from
nearby Petersville. -Since the livelihood of the town depended so
heavily on the Chesapeake and Ohio Canal and the B & 0 Railroad,

the major part of the town was constructed in a lTow lying section
between the two Tines. In 1889 severe flooding completely destroyed
this section of the town and nothing of it remains today.

Because of the trade brought by the railroad and canal, the need
for a hotel must have become apparent between 1840 and 1858 when
the bond map show two hotels including Garrott's Hotel standing
in its present location.

The structure was built in three parts. The first part, built by
1858, was the front stone section encompassing the first five bays
from the north side. The second part, added by 1873, was the three
story stone ell extending from the northeast rear of the building.
Lastly a three bay wide three story brick addition stuccoed on the
front facade was added to the south side of the main block of the
building.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Edward Garrott's Hotel is a very large three story ell shaped brick and
stuccoed stone structure which dominates the center of Knoxville facing
west at the intersection of Route 180 and 28. It is located just south
of the stream which flows through the center of town and once powered
Garrott's Mill which once stood just southeast of the hotel.

The structure was built in three parts. The first part, built by 1858,

was the front stone section encompassing the first five bays from the north
side. The second part, added by 1873, was the three story stone ell
extending from the northeast rear of the building, Lastly a three bay wide
three story brick addition stuccoed on the front facade was added to the
south side of the main block of the building.

The principal facade is eight bays wide on each Tevel except the third
which is seyen bays wide, A replaced one story frame veranda with frame
balcony extends completely across the front of the building.

An entrance door is located in the third and seyenth bays on the first and
second leyels, A1l doors have been replaced. Both doors located on the
first leyel are horizontal panel doors with upper 1lights and single 1ight
transoms. The doors on the second Tevel are four panel doors with upper
glass panes and single light transoms.

Occupying the remaining bays on the first level and each bay on the third
level are replaced 1/1 windows. The original double hung 6/6 windows

occupy each bay on the second Tevel and all bays on the rear and addition
of the building.

A two story frame porch which once extended along the south side of the
rear ell of the building has been removed. The wall fabric along this

part of the addition has been stuccoed and pointed a gold color. This rear
ell is four bays wide. Original four panel doors which once entered onto
the rear porch alternate with double hung 6/6 windows.

Two replaced entrances used for restrooms are located in the cellar level
of the north side of the building in the rear addition. No windows except
for small gable lights are located on the north and south gable ends of
the building. Two circular stays are located at the south gable end of
two bracing rods running partially through the building.

The south three bay wide addition is constructed of common brick laid in
common bond.

The entire structure is constructed on a slightly banked coursed random

stone foundation and is covered by a replaced standing seam tin gable roof
with boxed cornice. Four brick chimneys rise from the building. Twin
interior chimneys straddle the gable on the north gable end and center of

the building and a single brick chimney is located at the east gable end of
the addition. A newer single brick chimney rises from the south gable end of

cont Bt YN "SkpARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE _ o ) _
Edward Garrott's Hotel is very significant to the community of Knoxville

both architecturally and historically as a local landmark representing the
boomtown canal days of the town,

Knoxville was originally laid out in August, 1840 by surveyor George Bowlus. 1
However, the first and presumably most imposing buildings of the town were
built on the side of the hill descending from nearby Petersville. Since

the livelihood of the town depended so heavily on the Chesapeake and Ohio
Canal and the B & 0 Railroad, the major part of the town was constructed in

a Tow lying section between the two Tines. In 1889 severe flooding
completely destroyed this section of the town and nothing of it remains today.

. Because of the trade brought by the railroad and canal, the need for a
hotel must have become apparent between 1840 and 1858 when the bond map
shows two hotels including Garrott's Hotel standing in its present location.

The Garrott family of Scotch-Irish descent had owned most of the land known
as the Maryland Tract in the vicinity of Knoxville as early as the third
quarter of the eighteenth century.2 By 1840, when the town was laid out a
"P. Garrott" owned the land where the hotel now stands. It is assumed that
he or D. E. Hilleary, indicated on the 1858 Bond Map, was the builder of
the hotel. By 1873, the establishment was again under the supervision of
the Garrott family, Edward Garrott.

In 1884, a description of Knoxville states, "This would be a most excellent
spot for persons in seek of recreation as the bass fishing is very fine and
hotel accommodations good."3

In 1886, the "hotel property" was sold by James and Martha Reely to James
and Sophza Biser and subsequently to Charles F. Willard for the same price
= in 1891,

IFpederick County Plat Records, Book #9; Page 185.
2Fpederick County Probate Records, Liber A 1; Folio 571.
3post Offices of Frederick County for the Year of 1887. p. 35.

W Y rederick County Land Records, Liber WIP 1; Folio 178 and Liber WIP 13;
Folio 176,

i CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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8. SIGNIFICANCE

Edward Garrott's Hotel

According to Williams' History of Frederick County Maryland written in 1910:

"Willard is a prosperous businessman of Knoxville where he manages the Willard
Hotel, a well known hostelry."

In 1922, the building was sold to a Knoxville Home Corporation which subse-
quently forfeited the property which was sold at a sheriff's sale.

The Bank of Brunswick purchased the building for $2,500.00 in 1929 selling it
to the current owner in 1935. Except for a few tenants the building has
remained vacant since that time.

. 6Williams, Vol. II, p. 1093.
8Frederick County Land Records, Liber 3763 Folio 335.
’1bid., Liber 399; Folio 78.







F-2-031

Edward Garrott’s Hotel

Jefferson Pike (MD 180) & Knoxville Road, Knoxville
C.O. Titus & Co. Atlas, 1873

( Peteravitle Dist )

Seale 20 RHods to anlnoh
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. Edward Garrott’s Hotel
Jefferson Pike (MD 180) and Knoxville Road, Knoxville
Harpers Ferry Quadrangle

Tax Map 91, p. 155
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